
              
 
 

CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS, FLORIDA 
 

Mayor Zavier M. Garcia 
Vice Mayor Jaime Petralanda              Councilman Bob Best 
Councilman Billy Bain               Councilwoman Roslyn Buckner 
 
Decorum: “Any person making impertinent or slanderous remarks or who becomes boisterous while addressing the City Council, shall be barred 
from further audience before the City Council by the Mayor, unless permission to continue or again address the City Council is granted by the 
majority vote of the City Council members present.  In accordance with the foregoing, the City Council has determined that racial or ethnic slurs, 
personal attacks and comments unrelated to City matters or issues constitute prohibited comments from the podium.” 
 

CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
Monday, February 13, 2017 – 7:00 p.m. 

City Hall, Council Chambers, 201 Westward Drive 
 
1. Call to Order/Roll Call 
 
2. Invocation: Vice Mayor Petralanda  
 

Salute to the Flag: Students from Springview Elementary Patrol will lead the audience in 
the Pledge of Allegiance and Salute to the Flag  
 
3. Awards & Presentations: None. 
 
4. Open Forum: Persons wishing to speak on items of general city business, please sign the 
register located on the speaker's stand before the meeting begins. This portion of the meeting 
also includes any pre-screened video submittals. 

 
5. Approval of Council Minutes: 

 
A) January 23, 2017 – Regular Meeting  

 
6. Reports from Boards & Commissions: None. 
  
7. Public Hearings: None. 

  
8. Consent Agenda: (Funded and/or Budgeted)  
  
 A) Recommendation by the Police Department that Council approve an expenditure to 
Patrol PC, as a sole source provider, in the amount of $20,994.00, as there is only one source 
(proof attached) for the required four PatrolPC RhinoTabs. These funds qualify for expenditure 
from the Police Law Enforcement Trust Fund, pursuant to Section §31.11(E)(6)(c) of the City 
Code 
 
 B) Recommendation by the Police Department that Council authorize the issuance of 
a Purchase Order to Lou’s Police Distributors, Inc., utilizing the City of Hallandale Beach Bid 
#FY2012-2013-008, Uniform Purchase, in the amount of $20,000.00 for a 12-month period for 
police uniforms, as funds were approved in the FY 16/17 Budget, pursuant to Section §31.11 
(E)(5) of the City Code 



 
 C) Recommendation by Public Works that Council authorize the issuance and/or 
execution of a Purchase Order to HG Construction, utilizing City of West Miami under Bid #2016-
10032016 in an amount not to exceed $14,810.85, for emergency sidewalk repairs at various 
locations as funds were  budgeted in the FY16/17 Budget pursuant to Section §31.11 (E)(5) of 
the City Code and available funding utilizing the City’s existing CITT fund  
 
 
9. Old Business:  
 
 A) Update on Quiet Zone Project 
 
 B) Presentation from LifeSpan on the new Senior Center/multi-purpose facility 
 
10. New Business:  
 
 A) Resolution – A Resolution Of The City Council Of The City Of Miami Springs 
Providing For The Second Budget Amendment To The FY 2016-17 Budget;  By Increasing The 
General Fund And Capital Projects Fund Budgets To Record Various Transfers Of Funds: 
Providing Intent; Specifying Compliance With Budgetary Processes And Procedures; Effective 
Date  
 
 B) Recommendation by Public Works that Council authorize the issuance and/or 
execution of a Purchase Order to One, Two, Tree, utilizing a cooperative purchase with South 
Florida Water Management, under contract #4500098042 in an amount not to exceed 
$17,200.00 for emergency removal and disposal of downed trees due to tornado on 1/23/2017 
under City Code of ordinances Section §31.11 (E)(6)(e) for emergency procurement 
 
 C) Recommendation by Recreation that Council authorize the issuance and/or 
execution of a Purchase Order to Superior Park Systems, Inc., in an amount not to exceed 
$9,560.00,  for replacement of damaged bleachers and dug out benches at Peavy Dove Park 
under City Code of ordinances number  31-11 ( E) (6) (e). Funding will come from city reserves 
 
 D) Recommendation by Recreation that Council authorize the issuance and/or 
execution of a Purchase Order to Island Fence of Dade , in an amount not to exceed $11,720.00, 
 for emergency repairs and replacement of damaged fencing at Peavy Dove Park pursuant to 
Section §31.11 ( E) (6) (e) of the City Code. Funding will come from city reserves 
 
 E) Recommendation by Recreation that Council authorize the issuance and/or 
execution of a Purchase Order to Superior Park Systems, Inc., in an amount not to exceed 
$5,137.00,  for replacement of damaged trash receptacles at Peavy Dove Park under City Code 
of ordinances number  31-11 ( E) (6) (e). Funding will come from city reserves 
 
 F) Consideration of the Board of Parks and Parkways Recommendations for 
nominating the Yard of the Month Awards for April and May 2017 
  
11. Other Business:  
 
 A) FY2016-2017 1st Quarter Budget Status Report (Unaudited) 
 



12. Reports & Recommendations: 
 

A) City Attorney 
 
B) City Manager 
 
C) City Council 

 
13. Adjourn 
 
 

Please visit www.miamisprings-fl.gov for current meeting schedule or follow us on             Twitter @MIAMISPRINGSFL 
******************************************************************************************************* 
Live streaming video of this meeting is available at http://www.miamisprings-fl.gov/webcast. 
******************************************************************************************************* 

Anyone wishing to obtain a copy of an agenda item may contact the City Clerk at (305) 805-5006, download the complete agenda packet from 
www.miamisprings-fl.gov or view the materials at City Hall during regular business hours. 

******************************************************************************************************* 
Pursuant to Florida Statute 286.0114, the City Council provides the public with a reasonable opportunity to be heard on all matters. 

******************************************************************************************************* 
If any person decides to appeal any decision of this Board with respect to any matter considered, s/he will need a record of the proceedings and for such 

purpose may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the 
appeal is made (F. S. 286.0105), all of which the City does not provide. 

******************************************************************************************************* 
In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, persons needing a special accommodation to participate in this proceeding should contact the 

City Clerk, 201 Westward Drive, Miami Springs, Florida 33166.  Telephone: (305) 805-5006, no later than seven (7) days prior to the proceeding. 
******************************************************************************************************* 

Pursuant to Sec. 2-11.1 (S) of the Miami-Dade County Code and Miami Springs Code of Ordinances Chapter 33 - §33-20, all persons, firms or 
corporations employed or retained by a principal who seeks to encourage the passage, defeat, or modifications of (1) ordinance, resolution, action or 

decision of the City Council; (2) any action, decision, recommendation of any City Board or Committee; or (3) any action, decision or recommendation of 
City personnel during the time period of the entire decision-making process on such action, decision or recommendation which will be heard or reviewed 
by the City Council, or a City Board or Committee shall register with the City before engaging in any lobbying activities on forms prepared for this purpose 

and shall state under oath his or her name, business address, the name and business address of each person or entity which has employed said 
registrant to lobby, and the specific issue on which he or she has been employed to lobby.  A copy of the lobbyist registration form is available from the 

Office of the City Clerk. 
****************************************************************************************************************************** 

http://www.miamisprings-fl.gov/
http://www.miamisprings-fl.gov/webcast
http://www.miamisprings-fl.gov/


 
 1 

 
 
  
 City of Miami Springs, Florida 

City Council Meeting 
 

Regular Meeting Minutes 
Monday, January 23, 2017 7:00 p.m. 

Council Chambers at City Hall 
201 Westward Drive, Miami Springs, Florida 

 
1. Call to Order/Roll Call: The meeting was called to order by the Mayor at 7:05 p.m.  
 
Present were the following:  
 
Mayor Zavier M. Garcia 
Vice Mayor Roslyn Buckner  
Councilman Bob Best  
Councilman Billy Bain 
Councilman Jaime A. Petralanda 
 
Assistant City Manager/Finance Director William Alonso 
City Attorney Dan Espino 
City Attorney Haydee Sera 
City Clerk Erika Gonzalez-Santamaria 
Chief Armando Guzman 
Golf Director Paul O’Dell 
Public Works Director Tom Nash 
Elderly Services Director Karen Rosson 
Recreation Director Omar Luna 
 
2. Invocation: Offered by Councilwoman Buckner 
 

Salute to the Flag: Members of the Boy Scouts led the Pledge of Allegiance and 
Salute to the Flag 

 
3. Awards & Presentations:  
 

A) Yard of the Month – February 2017 – 460 N. Esplanade Drive – Jeff and Ana 
 Dunevitz 
 
Mr. Dunevitz was present to receive the yard of the month award from Mayor Garcia. 
   
4. Open Forum:  The following members of the public addressed the City Council:  
Sandra Novas, 1221 Plover Avenue. 
 

 



 
 2 

5. Approval of Council Minutes: 
 
A) January 9, 2017 - Regular Meeting 
 

Councilman Bain moved to approve the minutes of January 9, 2017.  Councilman 
Best seconded the motion, which carried 5-0 on roll call vote.  The vote was as 
follows: Vice Mayor Petralanda, Councilman Best, Councilman Bain, Councilwoman 
Buckner and Mayor Garcia voting Yes. 

 
6. Reports from Boards & Commissions: None at this time. 

 
7. Public Hearings: None at this time. 
 
8. Consent Agenda: (Funded and/or Budgeted):   
 
 A) A Resolution Of The Mayor And The City Council Of The City Of Miami 
Springs, Florida, Pursuant To Section 3-11 Of The City Code Of Ordinances, Approving A 
Purchase Order To Trane Air Conditioning For Inspection And Maintenance Services For 
City Hall, Via Miami-Dade County Bid# 6750-5/17-5, In The Amount Of $10,420.00 
Annually; Authorizing The City Manager To Execute The Purchase Order And To Expend 
Budgeted Funds In Furtherance Hereof; Providing For Implementation; And Providing For 
An Effective Date 
 
Councilman Bain moved to approve the minutes of January 9, 2017.  Councilman 
Best seconded the motion, which carried 5-0 on roll call vote.  The vote was as 
follows: Vice Mayor Petralanda, Councilman Best, Councilman Bain, Councilwoman 
Buckner and Mayor Garcia voting Yes. 
 
9. Old Business:  
 
 A) Update on Senior Center 
 
City Manager William Alonso read the staff memo for the record. 
 
Eric Elza, 90 Canal Street, addressed the City Council. 
 
Some discussion ensued, Councilman Best moved to approve the recommendation 
by staff to authorize the preparation of design/build RFQ for the current senior 
center site on Payne Drive.  Councilwoman Buckner seconded the motion, which 
carried 5-0 on roll call vote.  The vote was as follows: Vice Mayor Petralanda, 
Councilman Best, Councilman Bain, Councilwoman Buckner and Mayor Garcia 
voting Yes. 
 
10. New Business:  
 
 A) Recommendation by the Board of Park and Parkways to approve the Yard of 
the Month nominations for February and March 2017 



 
 3 

 
Councilwoman Buckner moved to approve the recommendations for yard of the 
month.  Vice Mayor Petralanda seconded the motion, which carried 5-0 on roll call 
vote.  The vote was as follows: Vice Mayor Petralanda, Councilman Best, 
Councilman Bain, Councilwoman Buckner and Mayor Garcia voting Yes. 
 
 B) Consideration that Council approve the recommendation by the Historic 
Preservation Board to allow awnings at Johnny’s Soda Fountain and Luncheonette located 
at 45 Curtiss Parkway 
 
Councilman Bain moved to approve the request for an extension of the awnings.  
Vice Mayor Petralanda seconded the motion, which carried 5-0 on roll call vote.  The 
vote was as follows: Vice Mayor Petralanda, Councilman Best, Councilman Bain, 
Councilwoman Buckner and Mayor Garcia voting Yes. 

 
11.  Other Business: None at this time. 
 

 12. Reports & Recommendations: 
 

A) City Attorney  
 
City Attorney Espino had no report at this time.   
 

B) City Manager 
 
The City Manager thanked the Public Works Department and Police Department for their 
quick response to the tornado that took place in the City the night before.  He was 
extremely thankful for the outstanding job from staff and that there was no loss of life or 
injuries due to the storm. 
 

C) City Council 
 
Mayor Garcia stated that the City had been struck by a tornado early Monday morning.  He 
was very thankful to Commissioner Sosa and Mayor Gimenez for their prompt visit and 
assistance after the event.  He was extremely thankful for Public Works for their quick 
response on clearing the streets and recognized that they continue to be present working.  
He stated that FPL is working hard on restoring the power to more than 1200 residences. 
 
Vice Mayor Buckner thanked the public for attending the meeting and reminded the public 
that the City’s general election is coming up. 
 
Vice Mayor Petralanda thanked Commissioner Sosa and Mayor Gimenez for coming out 
and supporting the City after a natural disaster.  He wanted to echo what the Mayor said 
about Public Works and their continuous efforts. 
 
Councilman Best thanked Public Works for their time and effort after the storm.  He also 
thanked the Police Department for making streets safe in the aftermath of the tornado.  He 
also wanted to acknowledge the passing of Bob Meryk who was a well-known long-time 



 
 4 

resident.  He also discussed the concerns expressed by residents on establishing quiet 
zones for railroad crossings.  He encouraged the Council to revisit the quiet zone initiative 
in the upcoming future. 
 
Councilman Bain had nothing to report at this time.  
 
Mayor Garcia thanked the staff for the recent ribbon cutting at Prince Field. The field 
underwent major improvements such as grading of the entire field.  Mayor Garcia also 
encouraged staff to have information on the quiet zones at railroad crossings in the 
upcoming meeting.  He stated that he brought this item for Council consideration in the 
past and is hopeful that the Council will consider it in the near future. 
 
 
13. Adjourn 
 
There being no further business to be discussed the meeting was adjourned at 7:45 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Respectfully submitted: 
 
 
           
Erika Gonzalez-Santamaria, MMC 
City Clerk 
 
Adopted by the City Council on 
This 13th day of February, 2017. 
 
 
           
Zavier M. Garcia, Mayor 
 
PURSUANT TO FLORIDA STATUTES 286.0105, THE CITY HEREBY ADVISES THE PUBLIC THAT IF A PERSON DECIDES TO APPEAL ANY DECISION 
MADE BY THIS COUNCIL WITH RESPECT TO ANY MATTER CONSIDERED AT ITS MEETING OR HEARING, HE OR SHE WILL NEED A RECORD OF 
THE PROCEEDINGS, AND THAT FOR SUCH PURPOSE, THE AFFECTED PERSON MAY NEED TO ENSURE THAT VERBATIM RECORD OF THE 
PROCEECING IS MADE, WHICH RECORD INCLUDES THE TESTIMONY AND EVIDENCE UPON WHICH THE APPEAL IS TO BE BASED THIS NOTICE 
DOES NOT CONSTITUTE CONSENT BY THE CITY FOR THE INTRODUCTION OR ADMISSION OF OTHERWISE INADMISSIBLE OR IRRELEVANT 
EVIDENCE, NOR DOES IT AUTHORIZE CHALLENGES OR APPEALS NOT OTHERWISE ALLOWED BY LAW. 
 
 
 

 



































1  

RESOLUTION NO. 2017 – XXXX 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
MIAMI SPRINGS PROVIDING FOR THE SECOND BUDGET 
AMENDMENT TO THE FY 2016-17 BUDGET;  BY 
INCREASING THE GENERAL FUND AND CAPITAL 
PROJECTS FUND BUDGETS TO RECORD VARIOUS 
TRANSFERS OF FUNDS: PROVIDING INTENT; 
SPECIFYING COMPLIANCE WITH BUDGETARY 
PROCESSES AND PROCEDURES; EFFECTIVE DATE 

 
WHEREAS, the City Charter prohibits any City department from incurring expenditures 

in excess of the department’s approved budget; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the City Finance Director has deemed it proper and appropriate to record 

transfers of funds within the City General Fund to cover the installation of four Tiki-Huts, 
transfer funds from the Human Resources budget to the police budget to cover costs of 
sergeant exams, and to fund the emergency tree removal costs after the tornado of January 
23, 2017; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the City Finance Director has also deemed it proper and appropriate to 

record transfers of reserve funds from the General Fund to the Capital Projects Fund to fund 
the cost of contracting with LifeSpan to design the new Elderly Services facility; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that the budget increases, recordations, 

and appropriations previously set forth herein are both proper and appropriate, in accordance 
with generally accepted municipal accounting principles, and in the best interests of the City 
and its citizens; 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

MIAMI SPRINGS, FLORIDA: 
 
Section 1:  That the City Council of the City of Miami Springs hereby approves and 

authorizes the budgetary amendments and appropriations to the various revenues and 
expenditures of the budgets and funds set forth in Exhibit “A” attached hereto. 

 
Section 2:  That the City Council approvals and authorizations evidenced herein are 

intended to provide the City with the means to accomplish the purposes and projects identified 
in the recitals of this Resolution and the Exhibit attached hereto. 

 
Section 3:   That the City Council of the City of Miami Springs has authorized and 

approved the foregoing budgetary amendments, increases and appropriations in order to 
comply with generally accepted budgetary processes and procedures. 

 
Section 4:  That the provisions of this Resolution shall be effective immediately upon 

adoption by the City Council. 
 
 



  
 2 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Miami Springs, Florida, 
this 13th day of February, 2017, on a motion by   and seconded by _____. 

 
Vice Mayor Petralanda      
Councilman Best       
Councilman Bain     
Councilwoman Buckner      
Mayor Garcia    
  

 
        

             
Zavier M. Garcia, Mayor 

 
ATTEST:           
 
 
 
           
Erika Gonzalez-Santamaria, MMC, City Clerk 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO LEGALITY AND FORM:    
 
 
 
      
Dan Espino, City Attorney 

 
 



EXHIBIT "A"

City of Miami Springs
FY 2016-17 Budget Amendment

All Operating Funds

Amended Amendment Amended
Fund/Classification Budget No. 2 Ref Budget

General Fund  
Revenues

Taxes $7,566,637 $7,566,637
Excise Taxes 2,755,000               2,755,000               
Licenses & Permits 183,000                  183,000                  
Intergovernmental Revenues 2,052,318               -                               2,052,318               
Charges for Services 2,509,895               2,509,895               
Fines & Forfeitures 490,000                  490,000                  
Miscellaneous 277,300                  877                         5          278,177                  
Proceeds from debt -                              -                               -                              
Transfers from other funds 230,087                  230,087                  
Fund Balance 60,000                    $40,900 -           100,900                  

Total General Fund $16,124,237 $41,777 $16,166,014
Expenditures

City Council 152,612 152,612
City Manager 325,873 325,873
City Clerk 281,938 281,938
City Attorney 166,000 166,000
Human Resources 236,462 ($3,200) 2 233,262
Finance-Administration 410,947 410,947
Finance-Professional Services 206,995 206,995
Information Technology 346,200 346,200
Planning 74,819 74,819
Police 6,411,082 3,200 2 6,414,282
Code Enforcement 192,468 192,468
Public Works 1,744,899 41,777 1,4,5 1,786,676
Recreation & Culture 2,330,175 2,330,175
Golf Operations 1,870,921 1,870,921
Transfers to other funds 943,957 943,957
Budgeted Increase to reserves 428,979   428,979

Total General Fund 16,124,327 41,777 16,166,104

Sanitation Operations 2,553,586   2,553,586

Stormwater Operations 498,905   498,905

Total Enterprise Funds 3,052,491 $0 $3,052,491
Special Revenue & Capital Projects

Road & Transportation 698,514 $698,514

Senior Center Operations 470,843 470,843

Capital Projects 854,340 48,831 3 903,171

Building Operations 738,568 738,568

Law Enforcement Trust 132,996 132,996
Total Special Revenue & Capital Projects Funds 2,895,261 $48,831 $2,944,092

    
Debt Service 896,916 $0 $896,916

Total Debt Service  896,916 $896,916
GRAND TOTAL ALL FUNDS $22,968,995 $90,608 $23,059,603

Legend:    
 
1) $23,700 for installation of 4 TikiHuts approved by Council 11/14/16

 2) Transfer $3200 from HR budget to Police budget to cover oral exam costs for sargeant exams.

3) Record $48,831 cost to LifeSpan for new Senior Center facility design

4) record $17,200 tornado cleanup costs to One Two Tree inc.
 

 5) $877 Peavey Dove Renovation reimburse by insurance company  







































 
 

 
CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS 
OFFICE OF THE CITY CLERK 
201 Westward Drive 
Miami Springs, FL 33166-5259 
Phone: 305.805.5006 
Fax: 305.805.5028 

 
 
TO:  Honorable Mayor Garcia and Members of the City Council 
 
FROM: Erika Gonzalez, MMC, City Clerk  
 
VIA:  Elora R. Riera, CMC, Deputy City Clerk 
 
DATE: February 3, 2017 
 
SUBJECT: Board of Parks and Parkways Recommendation 
 
 
******************************************************************************************************* 
 
At their last meeting on February 1, 2017, the Board of Parks and Parkways recommended 
the following to Council: 
 

a) Yard of the Month - April, 2017 
 
By consensus, the Board agreed to recommend 250 Lawn Way as the April, 2017 
yard of the month 
 

b) Yard of the Month - May, 2017  
 
By consensus, the Board agreed to recommend 381 Navarre Drive as the May, 2017 
yard of the month 
 
 




























































	Agenda Summary - February 13, 2017
	Agenda Summary p. 2
	Agenda Summary p. 3

	5A Minutes - January 23, 2017 
	8A Police PC Purchase
	8B Police Uniform Purchase
	8C Emergency Sidewalk Repairs
	9A Quiet Zone Update
	9B Presentation by LifeSpan
	10A Reso - 2nd Budget Amendment
	10B Tree Removal Expenditure
	10C Bleachers for Peavy Dove Park
	10D Fencing for Peavy Dove Park
	10E Trash Bins for Peavy Dove Park
	10F Parks and Parkway Recommendatio for YOM
	11A Budget 1st Qtr Update



